

RYTA - Rural Youth Training Activities D3.2 Training Materials

PREPARED BY:

INSTITUTE OF ENTREPRENEURSHIP DEVELOPMENT

E.M. ASSOCIAZIONE A.R.C.E.S

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH CENTER

March 2024



Contents

Introduction	3
MODULES OUTLINES	4
Module 1. Active citizenships	4
Module 2. Dialogue and communication	8
Module 3. Diversity and Discrimination	12
Module 4. E-participation tools	15
Module 5. Participatory approach	21
Module 6. Soft skills	29
Module 7. Sustainability, Climate changes and quality of life	36
Module 8. Vulnerable groups	43
Conclusion	51





Introduction

The Rural Youth Training Activities (RYTA) project seeks to enrich the democratic engagement and societal participation of rural youth by addressing their unique challenges and needs through targeted educational materials. Through a collaborative effort, RYTA has developed a series of training modules based on extensive research into rural youth inclusion, participation, and the environmental policies impacting their communities.

The RYTA training material covers several critical areas, including Active Citizenship, Dialogue and Communication, Diversity and Discrimination, E-participation Tools, Participatory Approach, Soft Skills, and Sustainability, Climate Change, and Quality of Life. These modules were conceived through a meticulous process that involved analyzing best practices, evaluating rural youth's needs, and considering the most effective strategies for fostering informed, engaged, and proactive community members. Each module is designed with clear goals: to enhance rural youth's capabilities in forming networks, participating in democratic processes, understanding, and leveraging digital tools for civic engagement, embracing diversity, and advocating for environmental sustainability. The expected outcomes include improved communication, leadership, and organizational skills; a deeper appreciation for diversity and inclusion; and a robust understanding of environmental responsibility's role in ensuring a sustainable future.

Our goal is to give young people in rural areas the tools they need to navigate and positively impact their environment as we introduce these training resources. The RYTA project is a catalyst for change, enabling young people in rural regions to become responsible, engaged citizens ready to make a positive impact on their communities and the larger global landscape. It goes beyond simply providing training.

This document offers a detailed overview of the Rural Youth Training Activities (RYTA) project's curriculum, aimed at empowering rural youth with essential knowledge and skills for active and informed citizenship. It is structured to lay out the framework and goals of each training module systematically, starting with an introduction to the module's objectives, followed by detailed outlines of learning outcomes and key topics covered. This organization ensures educators and learners can easily understand and engage with each module's core concepts and methodologies.

In addition to the enriched informational resources outlined here, the RYTA e-learning platform provides further support for an enhanced learning experience. Exclusive to the platform are engaging PowerPoint presentations and a wide variety of interactive activities, all designed for hands-on learning. These supplemental materials are meticulously aligned with the document's structure, ensuring a comprehensive understanding and immersive application of the curriculum. By combining the foundational insights provided in this document with the extensive tools and resources available on the RYTA Space platform, participants are fully equipped for a deep and impactful exploration of the curriculum, fostering significant personal growth and community development.





MODULES OUTLINES

Module 1. Active citizenships

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The module "Active Citizenship" aims to provide opportunities for participants to enhance their understanding of active citizenship, by investigating definitions, projects and models of participation to fit with the emerging forms of active citizenship among young people.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Acquire knowledge and skills about how to form new networking groups and organize events that will promote collaboration and cooperation, by fostering aggregation from common purposes based on utility and value
- 2. Enhance skills and capacity of creating regional or local projects to support active citizenship (communication, collaboration, organization, etc);
- 3. Improve motor, cognitive, emotional and relational skills, conveying values such as respect for oneself, for others and for the environment, equal opportunities, solidarity
- 4. Develop critical spirit, by stimulating continuous comparison with oneself and others
- 5. Improve knowledge of volunteerism, being an instrument of social promotion that can help personal growth, not just a service to solve emergencies.



Funded by the European Union. Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Education and Culture Executive Agency (EACEA). Neither the European Union nor EACEA can be held responsible for them.



SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

This section will present the concept of "Active citizenship" and specifically will suggest two or more questions related to this topic. The following questions are suggestions given by ARCES team to inspire the trainer to design training contents. Each partner can include or modify the structure of the module of this training course according to some specific local needs as well as beneficiaries' interests.

1. WHAT DOES IT MEAN TO BE AN ACTIVE CITIZEN?

Participation and active citizenship mean having the right, the means, the space and opportunity and, if necessary, the support to participate in and influence decisions and engage in actions and activities in a way that contributes to building a better society. Civic activism can be considered as a 'citizenship practice' that consists of a plurality of autonomous forms of collective action that are implemented in public policies and that give concrete expression to the principle of the commitment to remove obstacles to the equality of citizens through activities carried out in the general interest by individuals. We consider activities in the general interest as those that aim to make existing rights effective or to promote the recognition of new rights.

2. WHAT IS THE MEANING OF ACTIVE CITIZENSHIP AND RURAL YOUTH PARTICIPATION IN ADDRESSING POVERTY AND EXCLUSION?

The concept of active citizenship involves the meaning of working for the improvement of the community through citizen participation, for a better living condition for all members of that community. Enhancing the participation of young people living in rural areas in democratic and civic life, and broaden and deepen political, civic and social participation on various level are the main goals to be achieved for the project RYTA. We want to reintegrate them into modern society since many young people choose rural areas because they are bound by a sense of belonging and identity. Young people living in rural areas shouldn't be excluded from any decisions that may affect their life; this situation is less evident in the urban contexts. Challenges include being excluded from dialogue, marginalisation, poverty, etc.

Today we must certainly consider the difficulty with which young people today relate to both the adult world (considered increasingly distant and far removed from their orientations and values), and to the political-institutional context (which has disappointed them and provoked in them a growing dissatisfaction).

This leads to a consequent inability to engage actively, to feel 'part of the action' in decision-making processes and, above all, to live with detachment from their own territory and its problems. This is why it is considered to "motivate" and involve young people in voluntary actions to make them active and aware citizens.

The active participation of young people can be supported through the implementation of projects, initiatives on topics related to the territory (business, economic and social aspects)





with the dual purpose of meeting the needs for social innovation. The Module emphasises the objective of encouraging the participation of young people in training courses that see them operatively involved in a learning process and local planning.

The active participation of young people, on average, who are more open to exchange and the creation of networks and relations than their more mature counterparts, stimulates development, innovation, and dynamism in the rural area, enabling the area itself to overcome the isolation that characterises it.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

This section will present the main topics referring to Active Citizenship, such as voluntary work, social inclusion, human rights, and free time.

VOLUNTARY WORK

Voluntary work is the set of rights and duties of those who belong to a certain state and a certain community, some examples are help towards the poor, protection of animals and of one's territory. Voluntary work is a way to socialize with other people and it explains in a simple way the meaning of active citizenship.

SOCIAL INCLUSION OF DISADVANTAGED GROUPS' LIVING IN RURAL AREAS

Promoting social inclusion helps to integrate young people living in rural areas from disadvantaged backgrounds or at risk of exclusion (NEETs unemployed Women, disables, vulnerable groups, etc); Trainings, seminars, webinars are some ways to include rural young into the public debate and they can serve as a tool for bringing together and valuing diversity. Participating to rural activities helps combat exclusion by allowing greater socialisation.

HUMAN RIGHTS EDUCATION

Human rights education and training are fundamental because they help every human being to protect his or her rights, enabling him or her to make known the violations he or she suffers and, at the same time, helping him or her to respect the human rights of others. The main objective is the full realisation of human rights for all, through the building of a common culture on the issue.

This involves learning basic knowledge necessary for active democratic participation and the defence of human rights. The consequences of political action on the economy, society and the environment (e.g. the impact of certain democratic decisions on human rights or good governance issues) are also addressed.

FREE TIME

Participation to seminars, site visits etc, aimed at engaging young people in rural areas and boosting active citizenship. This is an example of models of participation, because in free time young people have the possibility to show their interest.





SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: ENEET Rural

MORE: https://eneet-project.eu/it/neet/

Goals and activities

- Over 300 NEETs will attend online and offline agro-technology training courses
- 900 NEETs will participate in online and offline soft skills development, involved in active job search an eNEET Rural operating system with interconnections and coordination of partners' local service structures/activities; online educational platform and related community; transnational network; circuit of transnational and national events
- the 18 best performing NEETs during the training will take part in 3–5-day international mobility actions
- 30 NEETs participating in 1-3 months mobility actions at national farms
- 6 mentoring services dedicated to NEETs taking part in long-term mobility actions
- 20 stakeholders will participate in study visits to improve their activities and influence the decision-making process
- 45 NEETs will start their own business
- 2000 users to be reached via social media, articles in the specialised press, newsletters, press releases, interviews, etc.

Example No2

Project Title: Get Up

More: https://www.minori.gov.it/it/progetto-get-giovani-esperienze-trasformative-di-utilita-sociale-e-partecipazione

Goals and activities

- Supporting and promoting the adolescents' abilities of self-organisation, autonomy and assumption of responsibility
- Ensuring that young people can, through participation in the experimental project, develop greater skills and knowledge that are recognised and spendable in their educational and working lives; especially with a view to fostering greater awareness of their own possibilities, enabling them to take a proactive approach to their educational and professional future
- Enhancing the school context as a place for devising projects aimed at involving the local area and the local fabric with a view to social utility and strengthening the bond of citizenship. The identification of innovative ways of involvement between school and territory is in fact one of the project's challenges.
- Encouraging reflection and sharing on a theoretical-methodological level with respect to the planning and implementation of interventions aimed at adolescents that have the





purpose of supporting and relaunching their capacity for self-organisation, autonomy and assumption of responsibility.

EXISTING YOUTH REPRESENTATION MODELS OF PARTICIPATION TO FIT WITH THE EMERGING FORMS OF ACTIVE CITIZENSHIP AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE

In this section we will present some existing youth representation models of participations to debates, intercultural exchanges, social networks, etc., from young people living in rural areas. These examples can demonstrate how rural youth participation is extremely relevant to tackle societal issues.

- Sit in on square: organising events with the theme of environmental sustainability, against social exclusion, in favour of integration or against unemployment and isolation.
- Creating knowledge laboratories: establish active centres for discussion and exchange of ideas.
- Intercultural exchanges: Organise intercultural twinning with other countries, organise comparison groups or non-formal education
- Creation of groups on social networks: create groups on WhatsApp, Facebook, Instagram to promote socialisation and integration.

Module 2. Dialogue and communication

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The training will provide opportunities for participants to understand the reasons for which communication and cultural dialogue are so relevant for rural youth.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Improve the capacity to gathering information from the other person that will be reached by using a simple communication both during lessons and in informal dialogue.
- 2. Improve the ability to understand the topic of the dialogue that will be reached by reading laboratories or by the correct use of mass-media.
- 3. Improve the sensibility to current social problems that will be reached by organising guiding tours in disadvantaged neighbourhoods.
- 4. Improve the ability to give constructive feedback that will be reached by developing a critical thinking, this would be possible through an analytical study of the arguments.

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

This section will present the concept of "Dialogue and Communication" and specifically will suggest two or more questions related to this topic. The following questions are suggestions given by ARCES team to inspire the trainer to design training contents. Each partner can





include or modify the structure of the module of this training course according to some specific local needs as well as beneficiaries' interests.

1. Why is communication relevant for rural youth?

Communication transforms people and, especially through digital, shapes new cultures and lifestyles. for rural youth, communication is a way of expressing their needs and demands, we could say that communication enables young people to relate to others, in particular to make friends and in the world of work. The need to communicate is first and foremost related to our condition of being people in relation to the reality around us. Communications performs several functions among many it is also useful for learning about the outside world and developing new knowledge. Another basic function is to be able to express oneself, emotions, status, and social role.

2. Communications skills

- Effective communication: It's something everyone needs to possess. Verbal communication skill includes a one-to-one interaction, presentation/public speaking ability, and good telephonic skills. Written communication would include program writing, report writing, letter writing and e-mail etiquette, etc.
- Interpersonal relationship interpersonal skills are often referred to as people skills, social skills, or social intelligence. They involve reading the signals that others send and interpreting them accurately to form effective responses. Individuals show their interpersonal skills all the time simply by interacting with others.

What is cultural dialogue?

Cultural dialogue is a mutual exchange of ideas between people with different points of view. intercultural dialogue can be defined as that communication that occurs when a message produced by a member of a certain culture must be received interpreted and understood by an individual from a different culture.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

This section will present the main topics referring to Dialogue and communication, such as, clearness, active listening, empathy, feedback, open mindedness.

Clearness

The clearness in the context of interpersonal communication does not show confusion in the communication of the message and the recipient's understanding of the message. It could be a great example of communication skills and for this clearness is referred to question 2.

Empathy

Empathic communication is an empathic listening skill; it means trying to deeply understand your interlocutor and connect on an emotional and intellectual level. It is referred to question 1, because it is the principal argument of a cultural dialogue.

Active listening





It is the ability to dedicate complete attention to listening to the other person, suspending one's own judgments, and trying to acquire the other person's point of view to fully understand what he/she wants to communicate. Also, this subtopic is referred to question 2, because it is included in communication skills.

Feedback

For good cultural dialogue, it is important to be able 0to catch the feedback (return information) that is always relayed to us by the interlocutor both verbally and non-verbally. The feedback is the response one gets after sending a message, which in turn produces other feedback. It is a great example of cultural dialogue because confrontation between two people is part of the dialogue.

Open-mindedness

open-mindedness means putting oneself on an equal footing with other people, therefore not having prejudices. Open-mindedness also means receptiveness to new ideas and experience. Also, this subtopic is referred to question 1, because to have an open mind help exchanging ideas.

SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL. REGIONAL. NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: SICCS

More:https://www.prefettura.it/reggioemilia/contenuti/Progetto_fami_siccs_strategie_intercult urali_per_costruire_coesione_sociale-12657195.htm

Goals and activities

- To improve the understanding of the phenomenon of social marginality of young people with a migration background present in the provincial territory and to assess the effectiveness of the relevant territorial responses through a study and research activity conducted by the University of Modena and Reggio Emilia.
- Strengthening the intercultural competences of public operators through the preparation, by the Mondinsieme Intercultural Centre, of a training course aimed at officials and employees of the Prefecture and other bodies of the province.
- Promoting the institutional participation of migrant and religious communities. The establishment of a Table for Interfaith Dialogue at the Territorial Council for Immigration of the Prefecture of Reggio Emilia will concretely serve to promote the involvement of different confessions in the social, cultural, and civil life of the province.
- Enhancing the participation of the new generations through the experimentation of innovative pilot actions preparatory to the integration of young people of foreign origin, devised by associations, cooperatives, or other actors in the territory in order to prevent marginalisation phenomena.





• Building an intercultural strategy on interreligious and intercultural dialogue, with a provincial scope, to be achieved through a participatory process, articulated in a series of territorial meetings between public actors, associations, and citizenship.

Example No2

Project title: RuralMigrantour

More: https://www.mygrantour.org/il-progetto-rural-migrantour-2022/

Goals and activities

- The creation of at least one intercultural rural route in each of the territorial contexts involved.
- designed in a participatory way through the involvement of people of migrant origin trained to accompany these walks.
- The creation of digital content related to the role of migration in the various territorial contexts that can be used online in an interactive and complementary way with respect to participation in intercultural walks.

Example No3

Project title: Crossdev

More: https://www.beniculturali.it/crossdev

Goals and activities

- Greater attractiveness of lesser-known tourist destinations
- Greater diversification of the tourist offers through the promotion of local assets and peculiarities, especially in the low season.

Example No 4

Project title: Rural Links

More: https://www.montagnappennino.it/rural-skills/il-progetto-rural-skills-approda-in-valle-del-serchio-e-montagna-pistoiese/

Goals and activities: The idea behind the project stems from the observation of the development of communities crossed by 'transversal tourism', a new form of tourism that manages to involve different targets around a common interest. A route, in fact, can connect a series of socio-economic actors and foster local development, as in the case of historical/cultural/religious tourism (e.g. the Way of St. James, Via Francigena, Karol's Way, Celestial Way), cycle tourism (the Loire by bicycle, the tour of Flanders, etc.), wine and food tourism (Open Cellars, Wine Routes, etc.). An example of a connection between European rural areas and of a 'mix' between certain types of transversal tourism (wine and food, landscape, religious) is precisely the 'Karol Route', which links small 'minor' sanctuaries, starting from Wadowice and passing through Poland, Slovakia, Austria, Slovenia, Friuli Venezia Giulia, Veneto, Marche, Umbria, all the way to Rome, i.e. between the places of the birth and youth of Saint John Paul II and the capital.

Example No 5

Project Title: RuralAlbania





More: https://www.rtm.ong/portfolio/ruralbania/

Goals and Activities: RURALBANIA intends to increase the income of small agricultural producers in Northern Albania through access to new agricultural assistance services in line with European best practices, qualified vocational training opportunities, sustainable production resources and local markets.

Specifically, the project aims to increase the productivity and added value achieved by family-run mountain farms, especially those managed by women, young people and returning migrants, operating in high-potential sectors (beekeeping, small mountain fruits, orchards and sheep and goat breeding) in the Shkodra, Dibra and Kukes regions.

Module 3. Diversity and Discrimination

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The training Will provide opportunities for participant to understand the meaning of Diversity and Discrimination as well as the relevance of these topics for young people living in rural areas.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Raise awareness people to an inclusive economy: which will be achieved through the organisation of conferences or seminars.
- 2. Improve the knowledge on agri-environmental sector that will be reached introducing value like sustainability, respect of environment or explain what this sector is.
- 3. Improve the knowledge on gender equality and race discrimination to create a mutual respect between male and female and between people of different race: this could be reached through an education aimed at respect.

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

This section will present the concept of "diversity and discrimination" and specifically will suggest two or more questions related to this topic. The following questions are suggestions given by ARCES team to inspire the trainer to design training contents. Each partner can include or modify the structure of the module of this training course according to some specific local needs as well as beneficiaries' interests.

1. How does the lower development of the rural areas could affect diversity and discrimination?

The lesser cultural and socio-economic development of rural areas changes the way these young people think, and they are influenced by the often-retrograde thinking of their community. For this reason, it would be very useful to organise events such as sit-ins in the streets to make young people aware of discrimination and racism. another type of





discrimination concerns women, who are not considered equal to men, because many jobs in the rural sector require physical effort, and even from the entrepreneurial point of view, women are often relegated to second place.

2. How does the different education in the rural areas affect the discrimination?

Provide young people with better access to reliable information, support their ability to critically evaluate information and engage in a participative and constructive dialogue. Young people find it difficult to verify the accuracy and reliability of information. They need to be better equipped better equipped to navigate the media landscape and participate in a constructive dialogue to do so: Ensure that young people know how to have a respectful, tolerant, and tolerant and non-violent dialogue online and offline. Ensure easy access to understandable and appropriate for young people, following ethical codes and quality standards appropriate for young people, following ethical codes and quality standards. Ensure that parents, those who carers and those involved in involved in education and training are equipped their education have ethical codes and quality standards.

3. How does unemployment in the rural area affect diversity and discrimination?

The agricultural sector absorbs a very small portion (under 4%) of total employment in the Union and in many Member States it is still in the midst of restructuring, generating, on the whole, a progressive reduction in employment in both absolute and relative terms. On the other hand, even where, as in Italy, the process of downsizing seems to have stopped and agricultural employment has stabilised in terms of numbers and incidence, the sector still shows little attractiveness by offering few attractive positions and above all opportunities for seasonal work, where we mostly find foreign workers who adapt due to lack of alternatives. In the literature, the agricultural labour market in advanced economies has been effectively described as a pyramid with a very broad base and very steep steps, difficult to climb up towards contractual forms with greater protection in terms of duration and remuneration, and where the entrepreneurial position is difficult to access due to the considerable initial investment cost of acquiring land and in the absence of reform that facilitates access to farm or agricultural land leases.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

This section will present the main topics referring to diversity and discrimination such as cultural diversity, education, gender, and racism.

Cultural diversity

Cultural diversity is about appreciating that society is made up of many different groups with different interests, skills, talents, and needs. Rural diversity refers to the presence of a diverse population of people in a low-density area outside of a city. While the term "rural" is contextual, it generally refers to a relatively low population density, a land-based economy (particularly agricultural), and a distinct regional identity.





Education

The concept of agricultural education refers to education and training designated specifically for the agricultural sector, which, includes forestry and fisheries. Generally, agricultural education also includes tertiary education, offered in an agricultural university or university faculty of agriculture, 'the sub-tertiary', degree-granting institutions, colleges, polytechnic institutes, training centres to educate workers, agents, and in-service farmers and, in a broader sense, vocational subjects on agriculture-related topics.

Gender Gap

In the agricultural sector and in the development of rural economies, women play a key role, so much so that the term 'agricultural feminization' has become popular in recent years. This phenomenon highlights the increase in the proportion of women in the agricultural sector, as well as their responsibilities, because of population growth, land fragmentation and intensification of agricultural production.

Racism

Racial issues in rural contexts have received increased attention, also in the light of incidents of violence. racial issues in rural contexts have received increased attention, also in the light of incidents of violence. However, it must be emphasised that racism is often produced by socio-economic processes and political-institutional mechanisms that differentiate the statuses and conditions of individuals of different nationalities, in relation to local communities and within rural areas.

SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: Empowering Rural Women in Agriculture

More:https://www.fao.org/policy-support/tools-and-publications/resources-

details/en/c/1266815/

Goals and activities

- Capacity Building: Training programs for rural women on sustainable agriculture techniques, financial management, and digital literacy to enhance their economic independence and leadership roles within the community.
- Awareness Campaigns: Conducting workshops and seminars to raise awareness among rural communities about the importance of gender equality and the valuable contributions of women to agriculture and rural development.
- Community Engagement: Facilitating the formation of women-led agricultural cooperatives to provide a platform for sharing knowledge, accessing resources, and advocating for women's rights in rural settings.





Module 4. E-participation tools

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The primary goal of this module is to provide learners with a deep understanding of e-participation tools and their significance in modern governance. By the end of this module, participants will have a comprehensive knowledge of various e-participation tools, their advantages, and the challenges they present. They will also gain insights into best practices and real-world case studies. This knowledge will empower learners to effectively engage with e-participation initiatives, whether they are government officials, civil servants, activists, or concerned citizens.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Identify and categorize different e-participation tools, including social media platforms, dedicated websites, mobile applications, and more.
- 2. Understand the advantages of e-participation tools, such as increased civic engagement, enhanced transparency, and cost-effectiveness.
- 3. Recognize and address the challenges and limitations of e-participation tools, including the digital divide, data security concerns, and legal issues.
- 4. Analyse real-world case studies and best practices in e-participation to draw valuable insights.
- 5. Formulate recommendations for the effective use of e-participation tools, tailored to the needs of governments, public organizations, citizens, and stakeholders.
- 6. Anticipate and discuss future trends and innovations in the field, including emerging technologies like AI and blockchain.

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

This section will present the concept of "E-participation tools" and specifically will suggest two or more questions related to this topic. The following questions are suggestions given by PDA team to inspire the trainer to design training contents. Each partner can include or modify the structure of the module of this training course according to some specific local needs as well as beneficiaries' interests.

- 1. What is e-participation, and why is it relevant in the context of modern governance? E-participation is the use of digital technologies, such as websites, social media, and mobile applications, to engage citizens and stakeholders in government decision-making processes. It is relevant in modern governance because it enhances citizen participation, transparency, and accountability.
- 2. Can you distinguish between different types of e-participation tools? How do they differ in functionality and purpose?





Different types of e-participation tools include social media platforms for public discussions, dedicated websites for public input, mobile apps for convenience, and online surveys for data collection. They differ in their functionality and purpose, catering to various forms of citizen engagement.

3. What are the primary advantages of using e-participation tools in public engagement and governance?

Advantages of e-participation tools include increased civic engagement, wider outreach, real-time data collection, cost-effectiveness, and enhanced transparency and accountability in decision-making.

4. Identify and discuss some challenges and limitations associated with the implementation of e-participation tools.

Challenges and limitations in e-participation tools may include the digital divide (unequal access to technology), data security and privacy concerns, the quality of participation (e.g., trolling), resistance to technological adoption, and legal and regulatory hurdles.

5. Provide examples of successful e-participation initiatives or case studies. What can we learn from these examples?

Examples of successful e-participation initiatives might include "Fix My Street" platforms for reporting local issues, online budget consultations that involve citizens in fiscal decisions, and participatory budgeting projects. These cases demonstrate the potential of e-participation tools.

6. What recommendations can be made to enhance the effective use of e-participation tools for government organizations and citizens?

Recommendations for effective use of e-participation tools might involve user-friendly interfaces, clear communication of the purpose of engagement, active promotion, and mechanisms to ensure all demographics can participate.

7. How can we ensure that e-participation initiatives are inclusive and accessible to all members of the community?

Ensuring inclusivity in e-participation initiatives can be achieved through digital literacy programs, accessible design, and diverse outreach methods to engage underrepresented groups.

8. What emerging technologies and innovations are likely to shape the future of e-participation tools?

Future trends in e-participation may include the integration of AI for data analysis and chatbots for engagement, as well as the use of blockchain for secure and transparent voting and decision records.

9. How can blockchain technology contribute to enhancing transparency and trust in e-participation processes?





Blockchain technology can contribute to enhancing transparency and trust by providing an immutable and auditable record of decisions and votes, reducing the potential for fraud or manipulation.

10. Reflect on the potential impact of artificial intelligence and machine learning on eparticipation initiatives.

All and machine learning can help analyse vast amounts of data collected through eparticipation tools to identify trends, sentiments, and areas of concern, aiding in more informed decision-making.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

This section will introduce key concepts related to e-Participation tools, focusing on digital platforms and technologies designed to enhance civic engagement and participation in government and decision-making processes.

The Evolution of E-Participation in Modern Governance

The evolution of e-participation in modern governance marks a significant shift in the democratic engagement landscape, transforming how citizens interact with government entities and partake in the decision-making process. Historically, the inception of the internet initiated this transformative journey, gradually embedding digital platforms into the fabric of governance to foster inclusivity, transparency, and accessibility. Early stages saw government websites disseminating information, but as digital technologies advanced, so too did the mechanisms for participation. Platforms evolved to enable real-time feedback, online consultations, and virtual town hall meetings, bridging the gap between government officials and the public. This digital progression has not only democratized access to governmental processes but also expanded citizen involvement beyond traditional, physical confines to a more global and instantaneous level. E-participation tools have thus become pivotal in reshaping the relationship between governments and citizens, offering a dynamic, interactive, and participatory governance model that aligns with the digital age's demands.

Types and Functionality of E-Participation Tools

E-participation tools encompass a diverse array of digital platforms, each designed with unique features to serve different facets of citizen engagement in governance. Social media platforms, for instance, offer an informal, widespread channel for information dissemination and public discussion, allowing both governments and citizens to share insights, updates, and engage in open dialogues. Dedicated governmental portals and websites provide a more structured avenue for e-participation, facilitating services like public consultations, policy feedback, and access to official documents, thereby enhancing transparency and accountability. Mobile applications extend the accessibility of these participatory processes, enabling users to interact with government services, participate in surveys, and receive updates directly on their





smartphones, thus integrating civic engagement into the daily digital routine of individuals. Online forums and discussion boards create spaces for thematic debates, allowing for deeper dives into specific issues and fostering community around policy topics. Finally, digital polling and voting systems offer a direct line for citizens to influence decisions, capturing public opinion on a larger scale and with greater efficiency than traditional methods. Together, these e-participation tools form a comprehensive ecosystem that supports varied aspects of democratic engagement, from information sharing to direct involvement in policymaking processes.

Advantages and Disadvantages of E-Participation Tools

E-participation tools offer a spectrum of advantages that significantly enhance democratic engagement and governmental decision-making processes. One of the primary benefits is the democratization of participation, allowing a broader segment of the population to engage in governance from remote locations. These tools facilitate a level of transparency and accessibility previously unattainable, where information and decisions are readily available. promoting an informed citizenry. Additionally, e-participation can lead to more efficient and timely decision-making, as digital feedback mechanisms and data analytics offer governments real-time insights into public opinion and sentiment. However, the deployment of these tools is not without challenges. The digital divide remains a significant barrier, where disparities in internet access and digital literacy can exclude segments of the population from participating. Privacy and security concerns also arise, as the collection and management of digital data present risks that must be meticulously managed to protect citizens' information. Furthermore, there's the issue of engagement quality, where the ease of online participation could potentially lead to superficial interactions rather than meaningful involvement. Thus, while e-participation tools promise to revolutionize the democratic process, their implementation requires careful consideration of these advantages and challenges to truly fulfil their potential.

Best Practices and Case Studies in E-Participation

The landscape of e-participation is dotted with successful initiatives that exemplify the potential of digital tools to enhance civic engagement and streamline governance processes. One notable example is Estonia's e-Residency program, which has set a global benchmark for digital government services, allowing global citizens to start and manage a business in the EU digitally. This initiative demonstrates the power of digital identity and online services in fostering economic engagement and inclusive governance. Similarly, the vTaiwan platform showcases the impact of combining online and offline participation methods to involve citizens in policymaking. Through this platform, Taiwanese citizens contribute to legislative and policy discussions, illustrating the effectiveness of collaborative platforms in bridging the gap between citizens and lawmakers. Another exemplary case is Iceland's Better Reykjavík, an online platform for citizen proposals and discussions, which has been instrumental in bringing community ideas directly into city council deliberations. These instances underscore several best practices: the importance of robust digital infrastructure, the need for clear and accessible platforms that encourage wide participation, and the power of integrating citizen feedback into actual policy and decision-making processes. Learning from these case studies, the key to





improving e-participation tool implementation lies in prioritizing user-centric design, ensuring inclusivity, and fostering a culture of open dialogue between governments and their citizens.

E-Participation Recommendations and Guidelines

To harness the full potential of e-participation tools, governments and organizations should adhere to a set of practical recommendations and guidelines aimed at enhancing effectiveness and inclusivity. Key to this effort is the design and implementation of user-friendly interfaces that accommodate diverse populations, including those with limited digital literacy. Accessibility features and multilingual support are essential to broaden participation and ensure that all community members can engage fully. Organizations should also focus on data protection and privacy, establishing clear policies and secure systems to maintain trust in digital platforms. Engaging citizens in the development and testing phases of e-participation tools can lead to more relevant and accepted solutions. Regular evaluation and feedback mechanisms are crucial for continuous improvement and responsiveness to user needs. Looking ahead, the future of e-participation is poised for transformation through emerging technologies such as artificial intelligence (AI) and blockchain. AI has the potential to personalize the e-participation experience, offering tailored information and engagement opportunities based on individual interests and behaviour patterns. It could also automate and enhance the analysis of large volumes of public feedback, enabling more data-driven decisionmaking. Blockchain technology promises to revolutionize e-voting and decision-making processes by providing secure, transparent, and tamper-proof platforms. These innovations could significantly increase efficiency, transparency, and trust in e-participation initiatives, provided they are implemented with careful consideration for ethical standards and inclusivity. As these technologies evolve, they will likely set new standards for engagement, participation, and governance in the digital age.

Free time

Encouraging active involvement in online discussions, polls, and collaborative projects during free time can significantly enhance young individuals' familiarity and comfort with various e-participation tools, fostering a culture of digital-savvy civic engagement. This approach not only leverages the intrinsic connectivity of the digital age but also aligns with the preferences and habits of younger generations who are increasingly online. By engaging in these activities, young people can develop a deeper understanding of civic processes, learn to express their opinions constructively, and experience firsthand the impact of their contributions on community decisions and policymaking. Furthermore, these interactive platforms serve as excellent arenas for practicing digital literacy, critical thinking, and collaboration skills — essential competencies in today's digitally mediated world. As young individuals navigate through these digital spaces, they not only become more adept at using technology for civic purposes but also cultivate a sense of responsibility and agency that can inspire ongoing participation in democratic life. This active engagement in civic digital realms during leisure time thus lays the groundwork for a more informed, involved, and innovative future citizenry.





SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: IMPACT

More: https://www.impact.gov.lb/home

Goals and activities

The IMPACT Open Data website is a Central Inspection initiative to give access to the data gathered through the most comprehensive, nation-wide, online data collection operation conducted in collaboration with different ministries and municipalities. IMPACT stands for the Inter-Ministerial and Municipal Platform for Assessment, Coordination and Tracking. All the data you can find on the website is free. It is meant to provide the tools and the evidence to observe, control and audit the activities of the central and local government. The data is continuously updated, and the list of topics mapped is ever growing.

IMPACT gives access to open Data generated on different levels of the public sector, including ministries and municipalities.

The Lebanese public administrations and institutions are constantly sharing data and information related to a wide range of topics. The aim of this website is to make these datasets available, to enhance the transparency and accountability of these institutions and to confirm the Central Inspection's commitment to citizens' right to access information.

EXISTING YOUTH REPRESENTATION MODELS OF PARTICIPATION TO FIT WITH THE EMERGING FORMS OF E-PARTICIPATION TOOLS AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE

In this paragraph we will present some existing youth representation models of participation to debates, intercultural exchanges, social networks, etc., from young people living in rural areas. These examples can demonstrate how rural youth participation is extremely relevant to tackling societal issues.

THE E-DEMOCRACY FOUNDATION: The Lebanese Foundation for e-Democracy aims to create, build, and manage a digital platform that allows citizens to directly propose and decide on political initiatives. This is what we call: electronic democracy.

This institution will encourage and promote the use of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) in the political process and governance.

It is a non-partisan, open and inclusive platform through which all Lebanese citizens are invited to participate on an equal footing in proposing, developing, and creating laws while preserving the constitution as a compass.

The e-Democracy Foundation aims to develop a healthy society that provides equal opportunities for all. A society that believes in the individual's endeavour, effort, intellectual achievement and economic return, a society that proceeds and works according to everything that is beneficial to the community and the public interest.





Module 5. Participatory approach

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The module "Participatory Action Research Approach" aims to boost participants capacities to become more engaged citizens and to run already tested methodologies, youth friendly ones, to be active in their community and become actors of change.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Gain knowledge and skills about Participatory Action Research methods which will be useful to create networks at different levels to act in the community and enabling people to use alternative research methods which are more youth friendly.
- 2. Boost skills and capacity of making research at regional or local level to support participation in the society (communication, collaboration, organization, etc)
- 3. Improve motor, cognitive, emotional, and relational skills, conveying values such as respect for oneself, taking care of your community, acting as an ambassador of participation.
- 4. Develop critical thinking and debating through research by stimulating continuous comparison with oneself and others in society and through a clear research method which will support the debate.

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

1. WHAT IS PARTICIPATORY ACTION RESEARCH APPROACH?

Participatory Action Research (PAR) is a comprehensive participatory approach that combines action and research to promote a two-fold aim: on the one hand, to generate and foster citizens' empowerment and to promote their action, and on the other hand, to debias and improve social research. PAR was developed as "an antithesis to the dominant research paradigm", in which "research 'experts' control both the production and distribution of knowledge" (LPC, 2015, p. 4). PAR promotes collaboration between researchers and participants by challenging the boundaries among their roles to comprehend societal problems and implement actions to effect social change. Researchers and participants work collaboratively to gain insight into a problematic situation and change it for the better. PAR is conducted to gather data that can be used to drive positive changes in social or environmental issues. This process involves individuals who are directly impacted by or deeply invested in the issue taking an active role in generating and utilizing knowledge related to it. PAR is not a research method but rather an umbrella term, it is an approach to research that encompasses various research methods that involve stakeholders in every phase of the research process (there are many methods, just some examples are group discussions, interviews, and mapping). It is possible to identify four major elements of participatory action research, these are: participation, action, research, and social change. Therefore, the PAR approach combines these elements and operates as follows: "Participation by stakeholders in a process





aimed at the advancement of knowledge through a systematic research process that results in action for social change on the part of the stakeholders" (Chevalier & Buckles, 2013).

To understand the theories and key approaches to PAR, it is necessary to look back in history. PAR has been utilized since the 1940s. However, according to Zeller-Berkman, "just as there are multiple definitions of PAR, there are also multiple histories". The roots of PAR cannot be attributed to a single source or lineage; rather, participatory action research is a fusion of multiple traditions, spanning academic disciplines such as social work, public health, and education, as well as grassroots social justice movements. Furthermore, PAR has evolved uniquely in different parts of the globe. It is possible to refer to participatory action research through many terms such as PAR, action research, participatory research, community-based participatory research, and others.

There are two main lineages that stand out in this field. One is associated with the psychologist Kurt Lewin, who is considered as the founder of action research (Gillis & Jackson, 2002). The other one is linked to Latin American social reform movements which were influenced by the ideas of Paulo Freire and other activists. Furthermore, a movement of critical PAR is trying to shift the focus of this framework towards decolonizing theories.

Lewin, a German psychologist who fled the Nazis in America as a Jewish refugee during the 1930s, believed "that people would be more motivated about their work if they were involved in the decision-making about how the workplace was run" (McNiff & Whitehead, 2006, p.36). Lewin coined the term 'action research' to study a social system and try to bring changes at the same time. Lewin action research focused on issues such as segregation, anti-semitism, discrimination, and minority communities. According to Zeller-Berkan, Lewis's philosophy "implicated all members of society as responsible for changing the conditions that create so-called minority problems". As he went deeper into his work, Lewin was increasingly committed to using research to obtain social changes. Lewin created an operating scheme to implement PAR that still influences today researchers in organizing their work. This scheme consists of cycles of steps which are: observing, reflecting, acting, evaluating, and modifying. Once the cycle of steps is complete, it repeats itself into other cycles moving in new directions. An emblematic quote which helps to understand Lewin philosophy and PAR approach is: "the best way to understand something is to try to change it"

The second PAR lineage is linked to Latin American popular social reform movements, the major contributor was the Brazilian emancipatory educator Paulo Freire who believed that critical reflection was crucial for personal and social change (Maguire, 1987). This second approach is committed to working with oppressed groups for social transformation (Healy, 2001). In the 1960s and 1970s, Freire developed a PAR approach to support people in participation in the production of their own knowledge and development of their own solution to bring social change. Its approach aimed at developing knowledge and critical consciousness through which poor and marginalized people could become aware of the forces that influence their life and therefore bring political change through this developed awareness. Essentially, the PAR approach of Freire focused on empowering poor and marginalized individuals in society about issues such as literacy, land reform analysis, the community, politics, society, and economics, and taking steps to eradicate the oppressive elements of reality, thereby freeing individuals who are subjugated and oppressed. Freire advocated a vision of research where individuals and communities actively participated in the creation of knowledge pertaining to their own experiences, and a vision of society where this community knowledge has equal value to the university-based knowledge.





The Centre for Community and Civic Engagement of Carleton College developed a PAR project according to which four types of PAR approach can be identified.

The first is Youth Participatory Action Research (YPAR) and focuses on youth collaborating with adults to identify a problem in their community and find or create solutions for it.

The second one is Teacher Action Research (TAR) and is a means used by educators to understand, assess, and improve their own practice and teaching.

The third one is Community-Based Participatory Action Research (CBPAR) and is an approach where community members and academic researchers cooperate in all phases of the research project to address the practical concerns of people in a community and use the findings to change inequitable practices and systems.

The fourth approach to PAR is the University-Community PAR (UCPAR) Collaborations which is usually started by university-based scholars and implies collaboration between these scholars and the community members to carry out research on community issues that are linked with the scholars' area of research and discipline.

2. HOW PARTICIPATORY ACTION RESEARCH IS CONNECTED TO SOCIAL INCLUSION?

Participatory Action Research (PAR) is a powerful and transformative research approach that actively involves participants in the research process, aiming to create meaningful and sustainable social change. When examining its connection to social inclusion, one can appreciate how PAR goes beyond traditional research methods by actively engaging marginalized communities, fostering collaboration, and empowering individuals to address issues that affect their lives directly. At the core of Participatory Action Research is the belief in democratizing the research process. This is particularly significant in the context of social inclusion, as it provides a platform for individuals who are often excluded or marginalized to have a voice and agency in shaping research agendas and interventions. By actively involving participants in every stage of the research, from defining the problem to implementing solutions, PAR ensures that the perspectives and experiences of marginalized groups are central to the inquiry. At the core, social inclusion centres on establishing a society in which every single person, regardless of their upbringing or personal qualities, has the same chance to engage in all aspects of society - from social interactions to economic opportunities to political involvement. This is where PAR (participatory action research) comes in, actively involving communities in identifying and tackling problems that directly affect them. By working together, this approach dismantles power hierarchies, challenges traditional top-down research methods, and empowers marginalized groups to take control of their own growth and progress. PAR places strong emphasis on collective action, highlighting its vital role in bringing about change. By working together, communities can effectively assess their issues, plan solutions, and carry out actions that promote social inclusion. This not only tackles immediate problems but also cultivates a sense of community, unity, and shared commitment towards driving social progress.

Participatory Action Research (PAR) goes beyond individual well-being and plays a crucial role in promoting the development of social capital within a community. Through its inclusive approach, PAR creates opportunities for dialogue, shared decision-making, and collective problem-solving, leading to stronger relationships, trust, and community bonds. This not only benefits individuals but also fosters the growth of resilient and supportive communities. Ultimately, Participatory Action Research is crucial in promoting social inclusion as it offers a





methodological approach that actively engages marginalized communities in the research process. By working together, empowering individuals, and promoting social connections, PAR plays a vital role in dismantling barriers, questioning systemic inequalities, and cultivating inclusive societies where all individuals have a platform to voice their perspectives and actively contribute to the shaping of their shared future.

3. WHY YOUTH-LED PARTICIPATORY ACTION RESEARCH?

YOUTH-LED Participatory Action Research is essential for the communities and in the rural areas it plays a key role. Furnishing these tools to young people will enable them to be an active part and take actions for their own peers. We strongly believe that it has these relevant features:

Authentic Representation

Youth-led Participatory Action Research ensures that the perspectives, experiences, and concerns of young people are accurately represented. By placing youth in the role of researchers, the process becomes more authentic and reflective of the lived realities of the younger generation. This authentic representation is crucial for addressing issues that directly impact youth and for developing effective and relevant interventions.

Empowerment and Capacity Building

YPAR is a powerful tool for empowering young individuals. By involving them in the entire research cycle – from defining research questions to implementing solutions – it builds essential skills, such as critical thinking, problem-solving, and leadership. This empowerment goes beyond the research context, contributing to the development of a new generation of informed and engaged citizens capable of driving positive social change.

Relevance and Contextual Understanding

Young people often possess unique insights into their own communities, cultures, and challenges. YPAR allows them to leverage this intimate understanding, ensuring that research is contextually relevant and sensitive to the nuances of their lives. This contextual understanding is vital for developing interventions and policies that genuinely address the needs of the youth population.

Promoting Youth Agency

Youth-led Participatory Action Research places an emphasis on agency – the ability of young people to act as agents of change in their own lives and communities. By actively involving them in decision-making processes, YPAR recognizes and promotes the agency of young individuals, fostering a sense of ownership and responsibility for their own well-being and the well-being of their communities.

Breaking Down Power Dynamics

Traditional research often perpetuates power imbalances where researchers hold authority over the researched. YPAR challenges these dynamics by decentralizing power and recognizing youth as co-researchers. This approach not only empowers young individuals but





also challenges age-based hierarchies, fostering more equitable collaborations and partnerships.

Catalysing Social Innovation

The energy, creativity, and fresh perspectives that young people bring to YPAR can catalyze social innovation. By tapping into the creativity of youth, this approach can lead to novel solutions and strategies for addressing complex social issues. Youth-led research has the potential to spark innovative initiatives that may not be as easily generated through more traditional research methods.

In essence, Youth-led Participatory Action Research is essential for fostering a more inclusive, equitable, and youth-friendly approach to research and social change. By recognizing the agency of young people, promoting their authentic representation, and harnessing their unique perspectives, YPAR contributes to a more vibrant and responsive research landscape that addresses the diverse needs of the younger generation.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

This section will introduce different methods of Participatory Action Research and some practical activities to run online and offline to learn more about it.

WHAT IS RESEARCH?

Research is a system of research or investigation aimed at discovering, interpreting, and improving knowledge. This involves collecting, analysing, and interpreting data to answer specific questions, solve problems, or contribute to existing understanding of the field that can be researched in disciplines including science, social science, humanities, engineering, and more.

Key aspects of the study include:

Purpose: Research is motivated by a purpose or objective. This may involve investigating a new product, testing a hypothesis, solving a practical problem, or contributing to the development of theoretical knowledge.

Systematic review: The review appears in a structured and systematic manner. Researchers follow a well-defined process, including design, data collection, analysis, and interpretation of results.

Data Collection: Researchers collect data through a variety of methods, such as tests, surveys, interviews, empirical data, or analysis of existing data The method chosen depends on the research question and the nature of the research.





Analysis: Processing and analysing the collected data to obtain meaningful conclusions. Statistical tools, qualitative research methods, and other methods may be used, depending on the research design and objectives.

Interpretation: Researchers interpret the findings within an existing framework of knowledge or theory. Conclusions are drawn, implications are considered, and areas for further research are often identified.

Communication: Research results are often communicated through research papers, articles, presentations, or other publicity. This interaction enables other researchers and the broader public to understand, critique, and build on the findings.

Ethical considerations: Research is conducted with ethical principles in mind, ensuring the welfare and rights of participants, and maintaining integrity in the research process.

Research can take a variety of forms, including basic or elementary research aimed at developing theoretical problems, applied research focused on solving practical problems, and comprehensive interdisciplinary research in many fields. It is a dynamic and iterative process that contributes to the growth of knowledge and the advancement of diversity in human life.

WHAT ARE THE METHODS OF YOUTH PARTICIPATORY ACTION RESEARCH (YPAR)? Youth Participatory Action Research (YPAR) uses several methods that actively involve young people in the research process. These approaches go beyond traditional research methods, empowering young people not only to contribute their ideas but also to actively design and conduct research. Here are some of the most common methods used in youth participatory action research.

Focus groups

Conducting focus groups allows researchers to facilitate discussion within a small group of young people. This approach is useful for exploring their experiences, attitudes and opinions on specific issues. Focus groups encourage open discussion and the sharing of ideas.

Interviews with

In-depth interviews provide opportunities for researchers to have one-on-one conversations with young participants. This approach provides deep insights into individual experiences, perspectives, and personal stories. Semi-structured or open-ended interviews are often used to encourage participants to express themselves freely.

Survey and Questionnaire

Surveys and questionnaires are quantitative methods that involve the collection of data through structured questionnaires. YPAR can use surveys to gather data from large groups of youth, providing statistical perspectives on certain issues or trends.

Shadow voice:

Photovoice combines photography and storytelling to enable young participants to document and share their experiences. Young people are given cameras to capture images that represent their perspectives and reflect on these images to express their story and insights.





Map of the map

Mapping exercises require visual mapping of communities or issues. This could be a neighbourhood map, where young people identify and mark important places, or a magazine graphic, visually representing the causes of a particular problem.

Art-based methods

Arts-based methods such as drama, poetry, or visual arts are creative ways to encourage selfexpression and reflection. These techniques can be particularly effective in capturing the emotions and experiences of young participants.

Neighbourhood walk

Visiting communities provides a tangible understanding of the environment. Participating youth will be able to identify milestones, assess community development, and identify areas of concern or improvement during this community walk.

Networking Sessions

Workshops include hands-on applications and skills development. Youth can participate in interactive activities, discussions, and collaborative workshops to explore research topics and develop solutions.

Digital Storytelling

Digital storytelling uses multimedia tools to create narratives. Young participants can use technology to share their stories, integrating audio, video, and images to express their experiences and ideas.

Stakeholder research

Including youth in the research phase is important in YPAR. Together, researchers and participants analyse data, discuss findings, and draw meaning from the data collected. This ensures that the interpretation is informed by the perspectives of young researchers.

These approaches are often used in combination, allowing for more thorough and engaging analysis of issues affecting young people. YPAR is essentially the active involvement of young people in the entire research process, from defining research questions to implementing solutions and advocating for social change.

SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: Thursday Night Live

MORE: What would it take to engage young people in harm minimization strategies in

Rural/Remote communities? Including self-harm, drug use etc.





Goals and activities

This question was identified due to a gap in service provision for the youth in the Mount Isa community. Members of the police force identified emerging trends of risky behavior occurring with young people on Thursday Nights in the local shopping precinct. These risky behaviours included volatile substance misuse, fighting, and stealing. Youth workers from government and non-government organisations proposed that this need in our community could be addressed through diversionary activities on a Thursday Night that would aim to reduce the number of youths engaging in risky behaviours in the Central Business District (CBD). Due to the community need, youth workers from Young People Ahead and Reconnect developed alternate activities close to the shopping centre to entice youth not to participate in risky behaviours. Based on the total number of police call outs and reports from shop keepers and youth workers these activities were successful in reducing volatile substance misuse and crime behaviours. However, new problems emerged in relation to ball sports being played near a car park and youth still having access to the darkened areas of the shopping centre car park to engage in risky behaviour. Youth Workers then liaised with the PCYC to organise the Thursday Night activities to be held at the PCYC. First youth workers provided transport from the CBD to the PCYC to move the groups of young people. However, over time young people began to walk to the PCYC of their own accord and therefore transport to the venue is no longer required.

Example No2

Project Title: Juba Wajin

Goals and activities

Júba Wajiín is a pueblo in a rural mountainous region in the lands now called Guerrero, Mexico, long inhabited by the Me'phaa people, who have fiercely resisted precolonial, colonial, and postcolonial displacement and dispossession. Using collective participatory action methods, this small pueblo launched and won a long legal battle that now challenges extractive mining practices.

Between 2001 and 2012, the Mexican government awarded massive mining concessions to mining companies. The people of Júba Wajiín discovered in mid-2013 that, unbeknown to them, concessions for mining exploration of their lands had been awarded to the British-based mining company Horschild Mexico. They engaged human rights activists who used participatory action research methods to create awareness and to launch a legal battle. Tlachinollan, a regional human rights organization, held legal counselling workshops and meetings with local authorities and community elders.

The courts initially rejected the case by denying that residents could be identified as Indigenous because they practiced Catholicism and spoke Spanish. A media organization, La Sandia Digital, supported the community to collectively document their syncretic religious and spiritual practices, their ability to speak Mhe'paa language and their longstanding agrarian use of the territory. They produced a documentary film Juba Wajiin: Resistencia en la Montaña, providing visual legal evidence.





After winning in the district court, they took the case to the Supreme Court, asking it to review the legality and validity of the mining concessions. Horschild, along with other mining companies, stopped contesting the case, which led to the concessions being null and void.

The broader question of Indigenous peoples' territorial rights continued in the courts until mid-2022 when the Supreme Court ruled that Indigenous peoples had the constitutional right to be consulted before any mining activities in their territory. This was a win, but a partial one. 'Consultations' are often manipulated by state and private sectors, particularly among groups experiencing dire impoverishment. Júba Wajiín's strategies proved successful but the struggle against displacement and dispossession is continual.

Module 6. Soft skills

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The main goal of the module "Soft Skills" for learners is to equip them with essential information about basic and valued soft skills for personal and professional development, focusing on why they need them and how to enhance them, and fostering social inclusion by promoting their active contribution to the development of their communities.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Gain a comprehensive understanding of soft skills and the processes involved in their development
- 2. Comprehend the importance of being updated on the current demands of the professional and social environment in terms of soft skills
- 3. recognize and articulate how the possession of certain soft skills can contribute to fostering inclusivity and positive social interactions
- 4. Identify and prioritize soft skills that are particularly beneficial for individuals in rural settings

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

This section will present the concept of "Soft Skills" and specifically will suggest two or more questions related to this topic. The following questions are suggestions given by iED team to inspire the trainer to design training contents. Each partner can include or modify the structure of the module of this training course according to some specific local needs as well as beneficiaries' interests.

1. WHAT ARE SOFT SKILLS AND WHY DO YOUNG PEOPLE NEED THEM?

In a nutshell, soft skills are a wide range of abilities, attitudes, and characteristics that help individuals perform successfully, connect with others, navigate their environments, and accomplish their objectives. Problem-solving, critical thinking, decision-making, self-control, communication, and social skills are among them, but they are not the only ones. "In fact,





according to the World Economic Forum and LinkedIn, the most important skill sets needed for jobs in 2025 and beyond are almost all soft skills".

Empathy, flexibility, and problem-solving are examples of social skills that promote positive human contact in a variety of settings. In addition to being essential for achieving successful personal and professional goals, these traits are in great demand across all sectors and job kinds today because, in an increasingly digitalized world, human interaction is valuable identity capital that has to be protected and enhanced.

In today's worldwide workplace, soft skills—such as the capacity to learn and adapt, listen and communicate effectively, think creatively, solve issues, collaborate with others in a team, and successfully lead and follow supervision—are becoming increasingly crucial for young people to have successful careers. These abilities are crucial for young people to acquire, hold onto, and move freely within the labour market, as well as for employers to efficiently manage work processes and encourage lifelong learning.

"Soft skills will keep evolving especially with the virtual communication that youngsters adopt nowadays. Soft skills development today is indispensable for young peoples' integration in society and the job market", declares Regis Gaunet, an EHL Alumnus of 1993.

A selection of key soft skills that should be adopted by young people now follows:

- Digital Literacy
- Critical Thinking and Problem-Solving
- Emotional Intelligence
- Creativity
- Collaboration and Teamwork
- Flexibility and Adaptability
- Leadership
- Time Management
- Interpersonal skills
- Cultural Competence and Diversity Awareness
- Curiosity and Continuous Learning

2. HOW ARE SOFT SKILLS DEVELOPED?

Soft skills are universally applicable and are acquired via social interactions and personal experience. During a child's early years, soft skills are developed at home, but for young people, peer contact at education and maybe later at work is where these talents develop the fastest. They also develop online more readily at this age since today's youth value social media and virtual interaction. Furthermore, it is imperative that young individuals cultivate their soft skills via volunteer work, extracurricular pursuits, job exposure, internships, and other experiences that challenge them to step beyond of their comfort zone.

There are several methods that young people can build soft skills; some of them include work experience, volunteering, community service, athletics, and learning by doing. Work experience, internships, work-study, and on-the-job training are a few ways that employers may impart hard and soft skills to their employees. An individual's surroundings, which includes their classmates, schools, and family, also shapes their soft skills.

3. HOW CAN SOFT SKILLS CONTRIBUTE TO SOCIAL INCLUSION?





Soft skills bring to life the innate worth that every individual possesses. According to this perspective, it is essential to support and foster skill development to enable every person to realize their full potential and contribute positively to society.

In this sense, soft skills are crucial because they serve as levers for both employability and social inclusion. However, people's abilities and the range of skills they possess go well beyond work. In addition to being marketable in the job market, these kinds of skills are essential for the personal growth of the people who get them and frequently have a positive group effect, such as when it comes to social and community activities.

Soft skills, therefore, have a mixed but complementary dimension as assets for employment, social inclusion and participation grounded on both economic and rights-based rationales. They are important for promoting social inclusion by fostering positive interactions, communication, and collaboration among individuals and communities.

Indicatively, soft skills in community engagement help individuals actively participate in community activities, ensuring that everyone has a voice and a role to play, clear and empathetic communication helps bridge gaps between individuals from diverse backgrounds, while soft skills in leadership and advocacy empower individuals to stand up for the rights and inclusion of others, creating a more equitable and welcoming community.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

Social inclusion for rural youth involves creating an environment where young individuals feel valued, respected, and have opportunities to actively participate in their communities. It is critical to assist young people develop the soft skills that will enable them to adapt and become more productive to meet the needs of a world that is changing all the time. Several topics related to social inclusion for rural youth are closely linked to the development and application of soft skills, such as Community Engagement, Youth Leadership in Rural Development, and Digital Inclusion.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

How can youth effectively engage with their local communities? What soft skills are essential for building positive relationships with community members?

Community engagement and management may seem straightforward for some, but the reality can be much more complex. For anyone involved in community engagement it is important to recognize the needs of others and come up with solutions for them. In order to guarantee that communities have access to the resources required to enhance their quality of life, community participation is crucial. This type of engagement entails interacting with community members and learning about their concerns or hopes for community improvement, thus specific soft skills are crucial for achieving thriving community engagement especially in rural settings:

Empathy: Interacting with people in the community with different lives and from several backgrounds, anyone should be able to understand the needs, concerns, and perspectives of community members, by seeing things from their point of view and listening what they are thinking, thus being able to build trust and connect with people regardless of their personality, opinions, or communication style.





- ➤ Teamwork: As a soft skill it enables individuals to collaborate in decision-making processes, suggest and implement effective solutions drawing on their varied experiences and insights, establish and maintain positive connections with community members, and feel a sense of ownership and commitment within the community.
- Networking: Networking skills facilitate collaboration, resource mobilization, and the establishment of partnerships for community, building in this way networks with community members, local organizations, and stakeholders is essential.

YOUTH LEADERSHIP IN RURAL DEVELOPMENT

Youth can take on leadership roles in community development by leveraging their skills, energy, and fresh perspectives. Soft skills are particularly important for effective leadership in rural settings, where community dynamics, challenges, and opportunities may differ from urban environments.

Successful leaders in these contexts understand the importance of building relationships, adapting to local dynamics, and empowering community members in the process. Youth can effectively lead community development initiatives in rural settings, by combining a proactive approach with soft skills in general and the ones mentioned below more specifically:

- Leadership: In rural development, leaders need to envision positive changes for their communities and set realistic and achievable goals to work towards. This vision can inspire and mobilize young leaders in rural areas to contribute actively to the development process. Youth leaders with strong interpersonal and communication skills can build trust, facilitate dialogue, and involve the community in decision-making processes. Also, they need to be adept at mobilizing resources, which are limited in rural areas, and creative in finding and utilizing available assets. Leadership skills enable young leaders to navigate the complexities of rural contexts, engage with communities, and drive sustainable positive change.
- Motivation and Inspiration: Leaders who can inspire a sense of purpose and collective responsibility are more likely to mobilize individuals to actively participate in activities aimed at community improvement. Motivational leaders align individual and community goals with the objectives of rural development. Skills such as mentorship, coaching, and the ability to inspire and motivate others become essential for fostering a sense of ownership and responsibility among youth. Youth leaders can instill a sense of resilience, determination, and optimism, encouraging young citizens to persist in the face of difficulties. Inspirational leaders empower others by setting an example, demonstrating dedication, hard work, and a commitment to the community, and inspire others to follow suit.
- Adaptability: Being open to change and adaptable to specific needs is a crucial skill for youth leadership in rural development due to the dynamic and often unpredictable nature of rural environments. Rural areas may face various changes, such as natural disasters, economic downturns, climate variations, swift to policies and regulations, demographic transitions and many more. Adaptable leaders should be capable of responding effectively to tailor their approaches and adjust their strategies to accommodate these variations, leverage existing assets and align with new guidelines if needed, and coordinate community efforts to address immediate needs and plan for recovery.





Below are some interesting and useful steps on how youth can step into leadership roles and enhance rural development in their region:

- 1. Identify Passion and Purpose: Define the specific community issue or project that aligns with your passion and the needs of the community.
- 2. Build Knowledge and Understanding: Gain a deep understanding of the community, its challenges, strengths, and the context in which you'll be working.
- 3. Engage with the Community: Establish connections with community members, leaders, and organizations.
- 4. Develop a Clear Vision: Define a vision for the community project, communicate the goals and expected outcomes clearly to inspire others.
- 5. Create a Supportive Team: Recruit individuals who share the passion for the project and build a diverse team with complementary skills and perspectives.
- 6. Foster Collaboration: Encourage open communication and collaboration among team members, community stakeholders, and potential partners.
- 7. Build Partnerships: Establish cooperations with local organizations, businesses, and government entities to enhance resources and support.
- 8. Implement Sustainable Solutions: Focus on solutions that are sustainable and consider the long-term impact on the community.

DIGITAL INCLUSION

While access to technology and digital resources is generally advantageous for urban areas, it is important to remember that rural populations, especially the youth, have digital needs as well.

"Empowering rural youth and community with digital literacy skills is not just a matter of bridging the digital divide; it's about equipping them with the tools they need to thrive in collaboration and communication, digitally driven society." CEO & Managing Director - Niyonagize Aime.

Digital literacy is commonly defined as a soft skill since it is less about one specific technology and more about the ability to learn and adapt to technology. For young people living in rural areas, having digital literacy skills is essential for connecting with the outside world, getting access to education and employment, and making a positive impact on their community. By concentrating on the fundamental digital literacy abilities, young people in rural areas can be enabled to prosper in a world that is becoming more and more digitally connected, closing the digital gap, and creating a better future for these communities.

There are components to digital literacy, which are reflected to important skills that rural youth should acquire and/or enhance for their correspondence in today's demands:

Basic Knowledge of Computers

Knowing how to use and navigate computer systems is the first step towards achieving digital literacy. It is imperative that young people living in rural areas possess fundamental computer skills, such as operating a keyboard and mouse, organizing files and folders, and comprehending standard software programs like word processors and spreadsheets. These abilities are essential for any digital endeavour, including making and distributing digital material as well as filling out online applications.

Internet Navigation

Youth in rural areas should be proficient in utilizing web browsers, accessing the internet, doing online searches, and determining the reliability of information found online. This ability





is essential for finding educational materials, looking for work, keeping up with current affairs, and many more.

Email communication

Email is still an essential tool for communicating in both personal and professional contexts. It's crucial young people in rural areas to know how to set up, maintain, and use email accounts. They should also be familiar with the fundamentals of email security and etiquette, since they are necessary abilities for networking and job applications.

Online privacy and safety

Young people in rural areas must be well-versed in internet safety and privacy practices due to the rise in threats and frauds. This entails being aware of phishing efforts, creating secure passwords, and realizing how crucial it is to safeguard personal data. To protect their financial security and digital identities, these abilities are essential.

Information Literacy

The capacity to evaluate and double-check information found online is essential in this day of information overload. Information literacy abilities that allow youngsters in rural areas to distinguish between reputable and questionable sources should be acquired by them. This ability is especially crucial for fact-checking, academic research, and decision-making.

> Collaboration and Communication via Digital Media

Collaboration and effective communication are critical for success in the digital world. To establish connections with others, rural youth should be adept at using digital communication technologies like social media, instant messaging, and video conferencing (Zoom, Microsoft Team, Google Meet, Cisco Webex, Zoho Meeting, etc.). They may cooperate on projects, take part in online forums, and expand their professional networks thanks to these abilities.

Flexibility and Lifelong Learning

Perhaps the most important digital literacy skills in the ever-changing digital world are flexibility and a dedication to lifelong learning. Youth in rural areas need to be ready to accept innovation, constantly update their skill set, and adjust to new technology. For them to succeed in applied digital environments in the long run, it is imperative to foster a development mindset.

Another essential component of digital literacy and therefore critical for digital inclusion is communication. Just as in-person communication, online communication requires the same skills: asking questions, expressing yourself effectively, demonstrating respect, and developing trust. Communication skills are integral to the holistic development of digital literacy in rural youth. They not only enable effective interaction with digital tools but also empower individuals to navigate the complexities of the online world, fostering personal and professional growth through:

- Access to Information: Effective communication skills are essential for understanding and interpreting information available on the internet.
- Collaboration and Networking: Good communication skills on digital environments are necessary for rural youth to engage with others, share ideas, and collaborate on projects.
- ➤ Online Learning: With the rise of online education platforms, communication skills become vital for understanding course materials, asking questions, and participating in discussions. This is particularly relevant for rural youth who might not have access to traditional educational resources or have limited options.





- > Remote Work Opportunities: As digital technology enables remote work, communication skills become crucial for participating in virtual teams, understanding job requirements, and conveying ideas effectively.
- > Job Search and Professional Development: Effective communication is essential for creating resumes, writing cover letters, and participating in job interviews, all of which are increasingly done online.
- > Social Media Engagement: Strong communication skills are necessary to engage positively and responsibly in spaces, such as social media platforms and online communities.
- > Problem-Solving and Critical Thinking: Effective communication is crucial for expressing and debating ideas, collaborating on solutions, and understanding diverse perspectives.
- Access to Government Services: Many government services are becoming digitized. Effective communication skills are necessary for rural youth to access and utilize these services, from filling out online forms to communicating with government officials, especially when there is not an office in their area.
- Entrepreneurship and Market Opportunities: Rural youth engaged in entrepreneurship or seeking economic opportunities can benefit from communication skills to market their products or services online, connect with potential clients, and negotiate business deals.

SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: European Youth Portal MORE: https://youth.europa.eu/home_en

Goals and activities

The European Youth Portal offers European and country level information about opportunities and initiatives that are of interest to young people who are living, learning and working in Europe. The European Youth Portal addresses young people, but also other stakeholders working in the field of youth (youth organisations, youth workers, policy makers, etc.).

4 main types of content on the European Youth Portal, each grouped in a specific section:

- 1. Thematic pages related to EU youth policies: "Get involved"
- 2. Thematic pages related to opportunities to go abroad: "Go abroad"
- 3. EU-funded programme/initiative pages: "EU initiatives"
- 4. Policy pages: "EU Youth Strategy"

In addition to these 4 main types of content, stories and testimonials of young people, news, and check for events are also available on the portal.

Example No2

Project Title: RURALIZATION project





More: https://ruralization.eu/

Goals and activities

The RURALIZATION project is based around the idea that a process of 'ruralisation' can change development patterns in rural areas overcoming population and economic decline and generating new opportunities. To foster a "ruralisation" process across Europe, we need new policy-relevant knowledge, which the RURALIZATION project will generate. Funded under the Horizon 2020 programme, RURALIZATION gathers 18 partners from 12 different countries including not only research organizations but also partners that implement innovative practices, such as members of the Access to Land network. This diversity will guarantee a wide range of perspectives and situations thus ensuring the project will formulate solutions and recommendations which respond to the diverse needs and features of rural areas in Europe.

The project provides a variety of deliverables through Work Packages, Networking opportunities, Sister projects, and a Toolbox that can be exploited and further investigated by young people living in rural areas.

Module 7. Sustainability, Climate changes and quality of life

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The main goal of the module "Sustainability, Climate change and Quality of Life" for learners is to equip them with essential information about paramount concepts for the preservation of nature and environment which in turn affects their quality of life as habitants within, focusing on why they need them and how to enhance them, and fostering social inclusion by promoting their active contribution to the development of their communities.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to:

- 1. Define key terms related to sustainability, climate change, and quality of life and explain the interconnectedness of these concepts
- 2. Evaluate the impact of climate change on various aspects of quality of life and learn about sustainable practices
- 3. Identify the importance of sustainability in various professional fields and understand relevant practices
- 4. Reflect on personal growth and development in understanding sustainability and climate change

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

This section will present the concept of "Sustainability, Climate Change, and Quality of Life" and specifically will suggest two or more questions related to this topic. The following questions are suggestions given by iED team to inspire the trainer to design training contents.





Each partner can include or modify the structure of the module of this training course according to some specific local needs as well as beneficiaries' interests.

1. HOW ARE SUSTAINABILITY, CLIMATE CHANGE, AND QUALITY OF LIFE DEFINED?

For humans to coexist on Earth for a long time, sustainability is a societal objective. There is disagreement about and variations in this term's specific meanings across literature, place, and time. Sustainability is frequently defined by experts as having three pillars or dimensions: social, economic, and environmental. In practical application, sustainability frequently refers to addressing significant environmental issues such as air and water pollution, land degradation, biodiversity loss, climate change, and loss of ecosystem services. But in 1987, sustainability was officially defined as "meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs", by the United Nations Brundtland Commission.

According to the UN, "climate change refers to long-term shifts in temperatures and weather patterns" and according to NASA "climate change is a long-term change in the average weather patterns that have come to define Earth's local, regional and global climates." Human activity has been the primary cause of climate change since the 1800s, mostly because of the combustion of fossil fuels like coal, oil, and gas.

The World Health Organization defines Quality of Life "as an individual's perception of their position in life in the context of the culture and value systems in which they live and in relation to their goals, expectations, standards and concerns." The term "quality of life" refers to the state of being that a population or an individual has with respect to all of the good and bad aspects of their life at a given moment in time. A person's physical, mental, and spiritual well-being, relationships, education, employment position, social standing, money, sense of security and safety, independence, decision-making autonomy, social belonging, and physical surroundings are a few frequent quality of life factors.

2. WHAT IS THE CURRENT STATE OF CLIMATE CHANGE AND ITS IMPACT ON PEOPLE AND ENVIRONMENT?

The current state of climate change and its impact on people and the environment is characterized by several key trends and concerns. Global temperatures continue to rise, with the past few decades being some of the warmest on record. The frequency and intensity of extreme weather events, including hurricanes, droughts, floods, and wildfires, have increased. These events have widespread impacts on communities, ecosystems, and economies.

Ice caps and glaciers are melting, contributing to rising sea levels and posing a threat to coastal communities. The absorption of excess carbon dioxide by the world's oceans is leading to ocean acidification. Climate change, combined with other human activities, contributes to the loss of biodiversity.

Climate change affects human health directly through extreme weather events and indirectly through the spread of diseases, changes in air quality, and impacts on food and water supplies. Vulnerable communities, often with lower socioeconomic status, are





disproportionately affected by the impacts of climate change. This can exacerbate existing social and economic inequalities.

3. HOW ARE SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE PREVENTION INTERRELATED WITH THE OVERALL WELL-BEING OF INDIVIDUALS, COMMUNITIES, AND BUSINESSES?

Sustainability and climate change prevention are directly linked to the general well-being of people, organizations, and communities. They are integral to the well-being of individuals, communities, and businesses by promoting health, resilience, economic prosperity, and social cohesion.

Sustainability and climate change prevention contribute to the well-being of individuals by fostering healthier living conditions. Efforts to reduce carbon emissions and promote sustainable lifestyles result in improved air and water quality, reducing the risk of respiratory diseases and other health issues. Additionally, sustainable practices often lead to cost savings for individuals. Energy-efficient homes and transportation choices, for example, can result in reduced utility bills and transportation costs. Engaging in sustainable and community-oriented activities also provides individuals with a sense of purpose and community connection, contributing to mental and emotional well-being.

Sustainable development and climate change prevention positively impact communities by enhancing resilience to environmental challenges and fostering social cohesion. Sustainable urban planning, green infrastructure, and disaster preparedness contribute to the resilience of communities, while community-based sustainability initiatives often lead to the creation of green spaces, improved public health, and enhanced local economies. Sustainable practices can create jobs in renewable energy, energy efficiency, and other green sectors, thereby contributing to economic well-being.

There is a growing recognition that preventing climate change and promoting sustainability are essential components of ethical and forward-thinking corporate operations. Long-term profitability, cost savings, and operational efficiency can result from the adoption of sustainable practices. Investments in energy-efficient technology, waste reduction, and renewable energy not only lessen their impact on the environment but also strengthen and sustain the business model. Companies that take sustainability and climate change issues seriously can gain from improved brand recognition. Customers are more likely to support businesses that are socially and ecologically concerned, which enhances public perception and fosters consumer loyalty.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

In the rural areas of the Euro Mediterranean region, community resilience to climate change is crucial for sustainable development and livelihood protection. Sustainable rural industries, encompassing agriculture, renewable energy, fisheries, and more, strike a balance between economic development and environmental and social concerns. These initiatives aim to strengthen local economies, preserve biodiversity, and foster sustainable practices.





Youth-led community development initiatives empower young individuals to drive positive change through entrepreneurship, technology, education, and environmental stewardship. In summary, the synergy of resilient communities, sustainable rural industries, and youth-led initiatives offers a holistic approach to address challenges and opportunities in the Euro Mediterranean region, emphasizing collaboration, innovation, and sustainability.

COMMUNITY RESILIENCE TO CLIMATE CHANGE

Community resilience to climate change in rural areas refers to the capacity of local communities to anticipate, prepare for, respond to, and recover from the adverse impacts of climate change. Rural communities often face unique challenges due to their dependence on natural resources, exposure to climate-related hazards, and limited access to resources. Building resilience in these communities is essential for ensuring sustainable development, protecting livelihoods, and improving overall well-being.

Community resilience is a complicated idea that is challenging to implement locally. Community resilience is the capacity to tolerate hardship, adjust to it, and emerge stronger from it. A community that is resilient has infrastructure, health services, and human resources that are easily available and aid in catastrophe preparedness and recovery. The most resilient communities support long-term civic structures and improve readiness.

Investments in communities that are climate resilient need to be considered as the situation worsens. Resilient architecture can help people live healthier, happier lives in the face of a climate disaster. It is nearly certain that unprepared towns will collapse, forcing billions of people from their homes. This might have a cascading effect of conflict, starvation, and worse poverty and put a great deal of strain on the international community. In addition to having stronger economies, resilient communities are designed to quickly adjust to shifting market conditions in the case of a disaster. This implies that people who live in climate-affected places may move to a low-impact, more sustainable style of living without sacrificing their own aspirations.

Governments and municipalities may increase a community's resilience by investing in public education and enhancing infrastructure, while residents in at-risk communities may contribute by seeking environmental education and using more environmentally friendly building materials. Additionally, resilient design is naturally sustainable. This guarantees that dwellings are constructed to endure harsh climate occurrences and lessens the need for high-energy building operations. When it comes to building materials, governments who want to upgrade their infrastructure should always choose sustainable options. Additionally, communities may fund non-formal environmental education by organizing sustainable outdoor activities in collaboration with organizations.

Despite having resilient individuals inside them, rural communities are sometimes perceived as being more susceptible to certain types of disasters. This is mostly due to the fact that rural communities frequently have fewer local resources than urban areas do. Examples of these resources include smaller public health expenditures and restricted access to health resources. It can be challenging to overcome some of these resource allocation restrictions. To guarantee that communities can recover from adversity or tragedy more rapidly, these





difficulties also offer opportunity to strengthen community resilience through alternative means.

SUSTAINABLE RURAL INDUSTRIES

Resource-based industries and businesses, such as mining, forestry, agriculture, and natural amenity-based leisure, are common in rural areas. Furthermore, a significant component of many rural economies have been manufacturing facilities, some of which process food, wood, and mining materials, but the majority of which engage in "footloose" industries unconnected to the region's natural resources. Financial, professional, scientific, and information services industries that are concentrated in urban economies are typically far less prevalent in rural regions. An important source of earned income in rural regions has historically been the public sector. The employment options accessible to the rural labor force are shaped by trends in these activities.

The countries located around the Mediterranean Sea are identified as the Euro Mediterranean region, and sustainable rural enterprises in this region frequently prioritize striking a balance between social and environmental concerns and economic development. In the Euro Mediterranean region, some significant elements and developments pertaining to sustainable rural enterprises include:

- Agriculture and Agroecology: Agroecological and organic farming methods that support sustainable agriculture crop diversification and the application of customary and indigenous knowledge in sustainable agriculture have gained popularity.
- Renewable Energy: Includes the incorporation of sustainable energy sources, such as solar and wind power, and efforts to lessen carbon emissions and increase agricultural operations' energy efficiency.
- Sustainable Fisheries: Sustainable fishing methods for the sake of maintaining the long-term health of marine ecosystems and implementation of policies to stop overfishing and save biodiversity.
- Rural Tourism: Promotion of environmentally friendly rural tourism to boost regional economies and protect the area's natural and cultural assets engaging guests with the local environment.
- Water Management: Water management methods and use of less harmful irrigation technologies to the environment can address water shortage and effective use of water.
- Forest Management: Initiatives to stop deforestation and sustainable forestry techniques to strike a balance between the preservation of forest ecosystems and commercial gains.
- Local Economic Development: Support to small and local businesses in rural regions and initiatives that emphasize on sustainable supply chains and adding value to locally produced goods.

The economic and social advancement of agriculture and rural communities may benefit greatly from the use of digital rural areas. As farmers become more proficient in today's information era, digital villages may come to represent the modernization and change of rural and agricultural communities. In addition to being beneficial for digital construction and rural rejuvenation, the promotion of digital rural construction may also have a significant effect on the sustainable development of rural areas and the high standard of the rural economy.





To promote regional economies and urban-rural relationships, sustainable rural development requires a comprehensive strategy in which the technical, social, and environmental requirements of rural communities are balanced with those of dependable public utilities. In the framework of climate change, rural communities need to establish a variety of nonfarming activities in addition to agricultural systems that are tailored to the unique geographic characteristics of the area in order to increase their resilience against environmental or economic shocks. When it comes to sustainable development policies and infrastructure investments, professionals, scholars, and decision-makers should provide rural communities equal consideration and opportunity.

YOUTH-LED COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

More and more research is showing that youth investment works best and lasts longest when young people create and run programs with the help of policymakers, community leaders, and their own families. Positive youth development (PYD), which emphasizes programs that are provided "By Youth, With Youth, and For Youth", places a strong emphasis on this. It takes use of young people's enthusiasm, energy, and inventiveness and directs it toward assisting in the removal of socioeconomic hurdles that impede their communities and restrict their potential.

Although "youth organizing" and "youth-led organizations" are sometimes used synonymously, they are not the same. Groups founded by young people are known as youth-led groups, and they are often centred around providing grassroots services. A collection of practices called "youth organizing" is employed to unite young people in the sake of social justice. Youth organizing typically revolves on certain causes and combines the results of social transformation with organizational or political growth. Young people are essential decision-makers and leaders in their own lives and communities, according to youth organizing. Accountability is placed on the institutions and systems that support them and their communities.

What then motivates young individuals to launch their own initiatives? It is thought that young people start their own organizations and projects in the beginning as a response to or criticism of what they observe occurring in their communities. This was sparked by what many saw to be a genuine service gap in some areas, a genuine mismatch between the services provided and what was available, and the presence of genuine territorial concerns. Youth-led organizations are aware of the issues affecting young people and their surroundings." Young personnel are better at understanding young culture, interacting with them in a more casual way, and successfully identifying with youth concerns.

Youth-led community development initiatives in rural areas of the Euro Mediterranean region are gaining prominence. These projects empower young people to actively participate in decision-making processes and contribute to the development of their communities. Emphasis is placed on providing training, skills development, and leadership opportunities to enhance the capacity of youth for positive change.





Entrepreneurship and innovation are encouraged among the youth, with support for start-ups, incubators, and mentorship programs. These initiatives aim to foster the development of sustainable and socially responsible businesses that address local needs. Technology is leveraged here to bridge the urban-rural divide, promoting digital inclusion in rural areas. Digital tools are utilized for community development, communication, and access to information.

Youth participation in agriculture and agribusiness is promoted, emphasizing sustainable and environmentally friendly practices. Modern and innovative farming techniques are encouraged to improve productivity while minimizing environmental impact. For these sector and practices and generally for the enhancement of employment and rural professions, education and skill development initiatives focus on elevating the knowledge and skill levels of rural youth, ensuring they are better prepared for the challenges of the modern economy. Programs are designed to align education and training with the specific needs of local industries and community development projects.

Social and cultural initiatives led by youth celebrate and preserve local cultures, traditions, and heritage. Cultural exchange programs, festivals, and events organized by young people can strengthen social bonds and promote diversity. Accordingly, youth-led projects addressing environmental challenges, including climate change, deforestation, and water conservation, can be developed. These initiatives raise awareness about environmental issues and promote sustainable practices within communities.

Collaboration with local authorities, NGOs, and other stakeholders is crucial for the success of youth-led community development initiatives. The dynamic landscape of these initiatives means that new projects and developments may have emerged and can further arise.

SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: The Paris Agreement

MORE: https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement

Goals and activities

The Paris Agreement is a legally binding international treaty on climate change. It was adopted by 196 Parties at the UN Climate Change Conference in Paris, France, on 12 December 2015. It entered into force on 4 November 2016.

Its overarching goal is to hold "the increase in the global average temperature to well below 2°C above pre-industrial levels" and pursue efforts "to limit the temperature increase to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels."

Based on the most recent scientific findings, the Paris Agreement's implementation calls for significant social and economic change. The Paris Agreement is based on a five-year cycle of





nations taking more aggressive climate action. Nationally determined contributions (NDCs), or national climate action plans, have been submitted by nations since 2020. Every NDC after that is supposed to demonstrate a progressively greater level of ambition than the one before it.

Example No2

Project Title: RURALIZATION project

More: https://www.ctc-n.org/

Goals and activities

The CTCN is the implementation arm of the Technology Mechanism of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change and is hosted by the UN Environment Programme. The Centre promotes the accelerated transfer of environmentally sound technologies for low carbon and climate resilient development at the request of developing countries. The CTC provides technology solutions, capacity building and advice on policy, legal and regulatory frameworks tailored to the needs of individual countries by harnessing the expertise of a global network of technology companies and institutions.

Especially through the Incubator Programme, the CTCN offers support for Least Developed Countries (LDCs) to implement the climate change actions included in their Nationally Determined Contributions (NDCs). The programme offers a first step, through the development of technology roadmaps, to deploy technologies that will enable countries reach their adaptation and low carbon development targets.

Module 8. Vulnerable groups

GOAL OF THE MODULE

The primary goal of this module is to provide learners with a deep understanding of e-participation tools and their significance in modern governance. By the end of this module, participants will have a comprehensive knowledge of various e-participation tools, their advantages, and the challenges they present. They will also gain insights into best practices and real-world case studies. This knowledge will empower learners to effectively engage with e-participation initiatives, whether they are government officials, civil servants, activists, or concerned citizens.

LEARNING OUTCOMES

At the end of this module, the learner will be able to understand and apply knowledge related to vulnerable groups in rural communities. Specifically, the participant will:

- 1. Holistic Understanding and Identification:
- Develop a comprehensive understanding of vulnerability across economic, social, environmental, and health-related dimensions.
- Acquire the ability to identify and recognize various vulnerable groups in rural communities, understanding their unique challenges and needs.
- 2. Empathy, Sensitivity, and Inclusivity:



Funded by the European Union. Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Education and Culture Executive Agency (EACEA). Neither the European Union nor EACEA can be held responsible for them.



- Cultivate empathy and sensitivity towards vulnerable populations, fostering a compassionate approach in interactions and community engagement.
- Learn and apply inclusive practices that promote the active participation and well-being of vulnerable individuals within rural communities.
- 3. Practical Skills for Empowerment:
- Develop practical skills for addressing vulnerabilities, including effective communication, community organizing, and facilitating access to resources.
- Explore and discuss empowerment strategies for vulnerable groups, emphasizing education, skill development, and community support systems.
- 4. Awareness of Rural-Specific Challenges:
- Recognize vulnerabilities specific to rural contexts, such as agricultural challenges, limited healthcare access, and environmental concerns.
- Understand entrepreneurship opportunities as a means of fostering economic independence and resilience among vulnerable individuals.
- Advocacy, Social Change, and Reflection:
- Gain insights into advocacy efforts and grassroots movements that aim to bring about social change and improve the circumstances of vulnerable populations.
- Develop the ability to critically reflect on personal attitudes and biases, evaluate the impact of interventions, and adjust strategies for continuous improvement.
- 6. Application of Knowledge and Commitment:
- Apply acquired knowledge to identify, plan, and execute projects that contribute to the well-being and inclusion of vulnerable populations in their respective communities.
- Cultivate a sense of social responsibility, inspiring participants to actively engage in community-driven initiatives and become advocates for positive change."

SECTION 1: QUESTIONS

Introduction

In this section, we will introduce the concept of "Vulnerable Groups" and propose some key questions to guide the development of the training module. The provided questions are recommendations from the NARC team, aiming to inspire trainers in crafting effective content. These questions offer a flexible framework, allowing each partner to adapt and modify the module's structure based on local nuances and the unique interests of the beneficiaries. The answers to these questions will serve as valuable insights for tailoring the training content to address specific challenges and cater to the diverse needs of vulnerable populations within each community.

1. Understanding Vulnerability: What constitutes vulnerability in a community, and how does it impact individuals and groups differently?

Vulnerability arises from various factors, including economic instability, social isolation, environmental hazards, and health issues. It's crucial to recognize that vulnerability is not a static condition but fluctuates based on external pressures and internal capacities. Training should include real-life scenarios and data to illustrate how these factors interplay to affect individuals and groups, emphasizing the importance of tailored interventions.





2. Assessing Community Awareness: How can we effectively gauge the community's understanding of vulnerabilities faced by its members?

Employing tools such as community surveys, interviews, and focus groups is instrumental in assessing awareness. These tools should aim to uncover not just the level of awareness but also the depth of understanding regarding the challenges faced by vulnerable groups. Training can showcase methods to design and implement these assessment tools, including question formulation, sampling strategies, and data analysis techniques.

3. Leveraging Community Resources: What strategies can be employed to identify and mobilize local assets for supporting vulnerable groups?

Identifying community assets involves mapping available resources, including local NGOs, businesses, healthcare facilities, and individual volunteers. Mobilizing these resources requires building partnerships based on shared goals. Training should cover techniques for asset mapping, partnership building, and resource allocation to ensure that support reaches those in need efficiently.

4. Cultural Competency and Inclusivity: How can we ensure that our support mechanisms are culturally competent and inclusive?

Cultural competency involves understanding and respecting the cultural differences within a community, including beliefs, norms, and values. Inclusivity ensures that support mechanisms are accessible to everyone, regardless of their cultural background. Training material should include case studies and best practices for integrating cultural competency into program design and delivery, highlighting communication strategies and the importance of community engagement.

5. Engaging and Mobilizing for Action: How can we inspire community action towards supporting vulnerable groups?

Fostering community engagement requires clear communication about the needs of vulnerable groups and the benefits of supporting them. It also involves creating opportunities for community members to contribute, whether through volunteerism, advocacy, or financial support. Training should present successful examples of community mobilization initiatives, discussing strategies for organizing community meetings, leveraging social media for awareness campaigns, and fostering a sense of shared responsibility among community members.

SECTION 2: PROPOSED TOPICS

Introduction

This section will introduce key concepts related to vulnerable groups training module, where we embark on a journey to deepen our understanding of marginalized populations within our





communities. This module is designed to shed light on the unique challenges faced by vulnerable groups, encompassing economic, social, environmental, and health-related dimensions. We will explore key questions to tailor our approach, delving into local challenges, assessing community awareness, integrating cultural considerations, promoting engagement, and developing practical strategies for support. Through this training, we aim to empower participants with the knowledge and skills needed to make a positive impact, fostering inclusivity and resilience within our diverse communities. Join us in this enriching exploration, as we work towards creating a more compassionate and supportive environment for vulnerable groups.

Introduction to Vulnerability

Understanding vulnerability is crucial in addressing the needs of the most affected populations. Vulnerability can be multifaceted, encompassing economic, social, environmental, and health-related dimensions. Economically vulnerable individuals may face poverty and lack access to financial resources, while social vulnerability often relates to isolation, discrimination, or lack of support networks. Environmental vulnerability can arise from living in areas prone to natural disasters or pollution, and health-related vulnerabilities include both physical and mental health challenges. Recognizing these dimensions is vital for developing targeted interventions and policies. Acknowledging the challenges faced by vulnerable populations is the first step toward fostering a more inclusive and supportive society.

Assessing Community Awareness

Understanding the level of community awareness about the challenges faced by vulnerable groups is pivotal in crafting programs that effectively address and support these individuals. This module guides you through the essential steps and methodologies for assessing this awareness, enabling you to identify knowledge gaps and areas needing greater focus.

The Importance of Assessing Community Awareness

Before embarking on any awareness or support program, it's crucial to grasp the community's current level of understanding and perception of vulnerability. This understanding not only shapes the direction and content of your initiatives but also ensures that they are relevant and impactful.

Tools for Assessment

Surveys: Surveys are a versatile tool for gathering quantitative data on community perceptions and awareness levels. Design surveys with both closed and open-ended questions to capture a wide range of insights.

Interviews: Conducting interviews, whether one-on-one or in focus groups, allows for deeper exploration of attitudes and perceptions. These discussions can unveil nuanced understandings and misconceptions prevalent within the community.





Focus Groups: Focus group discussions are invaluable for eliciting diverse perspectives within a community. Facilitate sessions that encourage open dialogue, ensuring a safe space for all participants to share their views.

Conducting a Baseline Assessment

A baseline assessment is your starting point. It involves using the tools to collect initial data on community awareness. This step is critical for:

Identifying prevalent attitudes and knowledge levels regarding vulnerable groups.

Highlighting misconceptions or stereotypes that may exist within the community.

Pinpointing the information gaps that need addressing through your programs.

Utilizing Assessment Findings

With the data collected, analyse the findings to guide your program development. This analysis will help you:

Tailor the content of your training or awareness programs to meet the community's specific needs.

Prioritize areas of focus based on the most significant gaps in understanding or the most harmful misconceptions.

Develop targeted messages that resonate with the community's current level of awareness and encourage positive changes in perception and behaviour.

Evaluating and Refining Your Approach

Assessment should not be a one-time activity but an ongoing process. Regularly revisiting and reevaluating community awareness helps you adjust your strategies to be more effective over time. Continuously engage with the community to foster an environment of learning, awareness, and support for vulnerable groups.

Building Awareness and Empathy

To build awareness and empathy towards vulnerable groups, it's essential to understand their experiences deeply. This involves engaging with stories and perspectives that reflect the real-life conditions of those affected by various forms of vulnerability. Interactive exercises, such as role-playing scenarios and immersive storytelling, can bridge the gap between abstract understanding and emotional connection. Participants are encouraged to step into the shoes of someone facing significant challenges, whether due to economic hardship, health issues, or social exclusion. This method fosters a deeper appreciation of the struggles encountered by vulnerable individuals and communities, encouraging a more compassionate and action-oriented response from the broader community.

Leveraging Community Resources

Leveraging community resources to support vulnerable groups is a strategic approach that harnesses the existing strengths within a community to create robust support networks. This process involves identifying, mobilizing, and utilizing local assets in a way that maximizes the availability and accessibility of support for those most in need. Here's how communities can effectively tap into these resources:

Identifying Key Community Assets



Funded by the European Union. Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Education and Culture Executive Agency (EACEA). Neither the European Union nor EACEA can be held responsible for them.



The first step is to conduct a comprehensive assessment of the community's assets. This includes identifying local organizations, institutions, businesses, and individuals who possess the skills, knowledge, or resources that can aid vulnerable groups. Libraries, community centres, local NGOs, healthcare facilities, schools, and faith-based organizations are typical examples of assets that can offer considerable support.

Building Partnerships and Collaborations

Once potential assets are identified, the next step involves building partnerships and collaborations with these entities. Effective partnerships are based on mutual goals and shared benefits. For instance, a local business might provide job training for unemployed youth, benefiting from developing a skilled workforce, while schools could partner with health services to offer mental health support for students.

Mobilizing Individual Volunteers

Individuals within the community often possess a wealth of knowledge, skills, and the willingness to help. Mobilizing these volunteers requires creating awareness about the needs of vulnerable groups and the different ways individuals can contribute. This could be through mentoring, tutoring, providing legal aid, or medical services. Effective volunteer mobilization also involves providing training and support to volunteers to ensure their efforts are impactful.

Utilizing Digital Platforms and Social Media

Digital platforms and social media can play a pivotal role in leveraging community resources. They can help map community assets, facilitate communication among stakeholders, and mobilize support quickly and efficiently. Social media campaigns can raise awareness, recruit volunteers, and garner support for initiatives aimed at helping vulnerable populations.

Creating a Resource Database

Compiling a comprehensive database of community assets and resources is essential for effective referral and support. This database should include details on the services provided, contact information, and accessibility features. It can serve as a valuable tool for organizations and individuals working with vulnerable groups, allowing them to quickly find and connect with the support services needed.

Encouraging Community Ownership and Participation

For support networks to be sustainable, they need to be owned and embraced by the community. This involves encouraging participation from all sectors of the community in supporting vulnerable groups. Community forums, town hall meetings, and participatory planning sessions can help foster a sense of ownership and collective responsibility.

Cultural Competency and Inclusivity





Cultural competency and inclusivity are foundational to the development of effective support mechanisms for vulnerable groups within diverse communities. To foster an environment where diversity is celebrated, and support is sensitively tailored, it is essential to integrate cultural awareness actively into every aspect of program design and delivery. This narrative explores the strategies and considerations essential for achieving cultural competency and ensuring inclusivity.

Understanding Cultural Differences

Cultural competency begins with a deep understanding and appreciation of cultural differences, which encompass language, traditions, beliefs, and social norms. It's important to recognize that these cultural elements significantly influence individuals' perceptions, behaviours, and interactions. By educating oneself and others involved in support initiatives about these cultural nuances, one can avoid misunderstandings and build more meaningful connections with community members.

Inclusive Communication Techniques

Effective communication is key to engaging diverse communities. Inclusive communication involves using language and mediums that are accessible to everyone, regardless of their cultural background or language proficiency. This might include translating materials into multiple languages, using visual aids for non-literate community members, and employing interpreters when necessary. Additionally, active listening and feedback mechanisms allow for the continuous adaptation of communication strategies to better meet the community's needs.

Respecting Values and Traditions

Engagement with diverse communities must be approached with a deep respect for their values and traditions. This respect can be demonstrated through various means, such as scheduling events around cultural and religious observances, adapting programs to align with local customs, and involving community leaders in the planning and implementation of initiatives. Such gestures not only show reverence for cultural differences but also facilitate the integration of support mechanisms into the fabric of the community.

Tailoring Support to Meet Unique Needs

A one-size-fits-all approach is ineffective when dealing with diverse populations. Support programs and interventions must be designed with flexibility to accommodate the unique needs and circumstances of each cultural group. This might involve offering customizable services, providing multiple options for participation, and actively seeking input from community members to ensure that initiatives are relevant and culturally appropriate.

Cultivating an Environment of Diversity Celebration

Creating an environment that celebrates diversity involves more than just recognizing cultural differences; it requires active efforts to incorporate these differences into the very core of support initiatives. Celebrating cultural festivals, acknowledging achievements of individuals from various cultural backgrounds, and creating spaces for cultural exchange are ways to foster an inclusive atmosphere. This not only enriches the community but also strengthens the mutual respect and solidarity among its members.





Continuous Learning and Adaptation

Achieving cultural competency is not a one-time effort but a continuous journey of learning and adaptation. It involves regularly seeking feedback, being open to change, and actively looking for ways to improve inclusivity. Training sessions, workshops, and collaborative projects can be valuable tools for building cultural competency among those involved in supporting vulnerable groups.

In conclusion, cultural competency and inclusivity are vital for the effective support of vulnerable groups. By understanding cultural differences, employing inclusive communication techniques, respecting values and traditions, and tailoring support to meet unique needs, it is possible to create a supportive and empowering environment for all community members. This approach not only enhances the effectiveness of support mechanisms but also contributes to the building of stronger, more cohesive communities.

SECTION 3: PRACTICAL KNOWLEDGE, EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS, INITIATIVES AT LOCAL, REGIONAL, NATIONAL LEVEL

EXISTING PROJECTS

Example No1

Project Title: Za'atari Refugee Camp Solar Plant Project

More: https://www.unhcr.org/news/stories/jordans-zaatari-camp-goes-green-new-solar-plant

Goals and Activities:

The Za'atari refugee camp solar plant project, launched in 2017 with funding from the German government, aims to improve the living conditions of Syrian refugees by providing a sustainable energy source. The solar photovoltaic plant supplies clean, free electricity to all camp residents, enhancing their quality of life through better access to lighting, heating, and cooling, while also significantly reducing carbon emissions associated with the camp.

Example No2

Project Title: Jordan River Foundation's Community Empowerment Programs

More: https://www.jordanriver.jo/en

Goals and Activities:

The Jordan River Foundation (JRF) focuses on child safety and community empowerment, with its community empowerment programs standing out for their comprehensive approach to supporting vulnerable populations, including women and children. The Bani Hamida Women's Weaving Project, for example, not only preserves traditional handicrafts but also provides economic opportunities for women in rural areas, promoting economic independence and cultural preservation.

Example No3

Initiative Title: Makani Centres





More: https://www.unicef.org/jordan/stories/makani-centres-safe-space-learn-and-make-new-friends

Goals and Activities:

Makani ('My Space' in Arabic), an initiative by UNICEF in partnership with local NGOs across Jordan, aims to provide comprehensive support to children and adolescents in vulnerable communities, including Syrian refugees. The centers offer a range of services, from formal education and life skills training to psychosocial support and child protection services, ensuring every child has access to learning opportunities and support networks.

Example No4

Initiative Title: Microfund for Women (MFW) in Jordan

More: https://www.microfund.org.jo/

Goals and Activities:

Microfund for Women (MFW) is a non-profit microfinance institution that aims to empower women and support small entrepreneurs in Jordan, especially those in underprivileged areas. By providing small loans, savings programs, and insurance, MFW helps women start and grow their own businesses, leading to increased economic independence and community development, contributing to poverty alleviation and women's empowerment in Jordan.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the Rural Youth Training Activities (RYTA) project represents a pioneering step towards empowering the youth of rural areas, equipping them with the skills and knowledge necessary to navigate and influence their communities positively. Through the structured curriculum outlined in this document, we intend to foster a generation of informed, engaged, and proactive young individuals who are prepared to tackle the challenges and opportunities of their unique environments.

The training modules developed for RYTA, including Active Citizenship, Dialogue and Communication, Diversity and Discrimination, E-participation Tools, Participatory Approach, Soft Skills, and Sustainability, Climate Change, and Quality of Life, reflect the commitment to addressing the multifaceted needs of rural youth. Each module is designed not only to impart essential knowledge but also to inspire action and facilitate a deeper connection with the community and the natural world.

We encourage educators, community leaders, and young learners themselves to study the materials presented in this document and on the RYTA e-learning platform. There is available a rich repository of resources that enhance and extend the learning experience beyond the pages of this document. By engaging with these materials, participants will gain a robust foundation for personal development and community improvement.

